
Draft 

Loudon Zoning Board of Adjustment 
Meeting Minutes 

May 26, 2016 
 

Present: 
George Saunderson, Howard Pearl, Chairman Dave Powelson, Earl Tuson, Charlie Aznive 
 
Minutes: 
Howard Pearl made a motion to approve the minutes of April 28, 2016 Regular Meeting as presented; 
seconded by Earl Tuson.  All were in favor. 
 
George Saunderson and Charlie Aznive were appointed to vote in Roy Merrill and Ned Lizotte’s absence.   
 
Discussions: 
Robert Hayward – from 25 Sheep rock rd came in to discuss standing pools of water on his property that he’s 
looking to fill in. Mr. Hayward said that his neighbor had some trees cut down and since then the water has 
run down and created pools of water. Robert Hayward said nothing is living in those pools but he’s concerned 
about mosquitoes. Dave Powelson said the ordinance protects wetlands and the buffer around them. The 
board agreed this is something he should call Julie Robinson about before he fills the holes in and just make 
sure it’s not considered wetlands.  
 
 
Public Hearings: 
Application #Z-16-06, Miranda Milano –Special exception for event venue, AFP District, Map 36, Lot 3.  
Miranda began speaking to the board about her plans and the board realized she was planning on having the 
events across the street from her home which meant an abutter was missed. Miranda Milano withdrew her 
application until next month so the other abutter could be notified. Earl Tuson made a motion to continue 
the application until June 23, 2016. George Saunderson seconded the motion. All were in favor.  
 
Application #Z-16-07 – Tony Merullo,– Equitable Waiver, RR District, Map 58, Lot 143. Tony Merullo explained 
he was back to ask for an equitable waiver as the property is encroaching on the 75 ft wetland buffer. Tony 
Merrullo went over the maps he provided with the board and read through the application. Tony Merullo 
stated he’s reached out to Julie Robinson, hadn’t heard back and went to the conservation meeting but she 
was on vacation and so he was told someone from conservation would be there tonight but is not. Abutters 
Glen and Francine Clave were present. Mr Clave said they are very happy there is someone across the street 
now from them and had been waiting for neighbors. Charlie Aznive said it seems like it would be more damage 
if it’s required to be moved.  Howard Pearl made a motion to approve the application. Earl Tuson seconded 
motion. Dave Powelson said he would like to have a definitive number for encroaching on the wetland. 
Howard Pearl amended his motion not to encroach more than 60 ft. Earl Tuson seconded motion.  A roll call 
was taken. Charlie Aznive – yes, Earl Tuson – yes, Dave Powelson – yes, Howard Pearl – yes, George 
Saunderson - yes. Unanimous – APPROVED.  
 



Application #Z-16-08 -  David Bast – Special Exception for reduced side setback, R/R District, Map 39, Lot 11-3. 
David Bast showed the board the map of his property and the proposed garage. Howard Pearl asked if he had 
been in about 8 years ago for the driveway, David Bast said yes. Howard Pearl asked if Mr. Bast wanted to 
encroach closer to the side setback with the driveway, David Bast said no. David Bast went through the 
application with the board.George Saunderson asked about the sheds. David Bast said his current sheds would 
be moved, and showed them on the map where they would go. Mr. Bast said this would be the last structure 
they would put on the property. Earl Tuson made a motion to accept the application. Charlie Aznive 
seconded the motion. Earl amended his motion to a side setback of 20 ft.Charlie Aznive seconded motion. A 
roll call was taken. Charlie Aznive – yes, Earl Tuson – yes, Dave Powelson – yes, Howard Pearl – yes, George 
Saunderson - yes. Unanimous – APPROVED. 
 
Application #Z16-09 – Colin Cabot – Variance for a bed and breakfast, AFP and R/R District, Map 17, Lots 1, 2 
and 3. Abutters Denis Proulx and Deborah Eastman, Mary Sartwell, Brian Grimaldi, Sandra Hillsgrove and 
Stephen Darling were present as well as Bruce Yeaton’s son Jared Yeaton. Earl Tuson recused himself.  Colin 
Cabot shared that in 2008 he came to the ZBA for a school and then in 2012 they saved the town grange which 
is also on his property in a trailer.  Colin Cabot was looking to do classes, trailers, blacksmithing, traditional 
crafts and more, now he’s looking to make it one entity with a board of directors, Colin is the head of the 
board as well as Alex Ray, Kathy Bogelshield, Ben Wilson and 2-3 preservation experts. Colin Cabot said he is 
looking to construct a new carriage barn where the old one was with a full basement and 7 double occupancy 
rooms upstairs with proper septic system and a large kitchen with large dining room indoor and outdoor for 
about 60 people. Jared Yeaton shared that his father’s concern is that the road is currently not in the best 
condition and with potholes he wants to make sure there is a plan in place. Mr. Yeaton said he’s not in 
objection to the bed and breakfast but the road is a concern. Colin Cabot said he feels as if the road is taken 
care of well by the town and that they have put in culverts as needed for ice which was a serious problem. Mr. 
Cabot also said they wouldn’t go beyond the bump, as the parking would be behind the barn and not seen 
from the yard and people wouldn’t ever get to the bridge. Jared Yeaton asked if the Bed and Breakfast would 
only be for workshops. Colin Cabot said he doesn’t want to say that. Mary Sartwell asked what other events 
would be held there as the outside seating was for 60. Colin Cabot said the indoor seating would be year 
round which seats 30. Mrs. Sartwell asked about reunions, weddings, lights, parties, etc. Colin Cabot said he 
doesn’t plan on doing any weddings. Mary Sartwell asked about a Pool, tennis court or volleyball. Colin Cabot 
said no, the loudest activity would be gardening. Colin Cabot said they are already doing workshops, but the 
barn and rooms would take up to a year and the grange would take two years to be done. Steve Darling asked 
about the amount of people coming to the property per class as classes are 8-12 but seating would be 60. 
Colin Cabot said the capacity in the kitchen is separate than overnight. Steve Darling said the traffic on the 
road would be something he’d be willing to deal with because what Colin Cabot is doing is great. Mr. Darling 
asked if the property across the street is being used in this application as well. Mr. Cabot said that property is 
foot access only. Colin Cabot shared a rough draft of building placement. Colin Cabot read through the 
application with the board.  Sandra Hillsgrove said she’s been at her home since 1967 and she hardly hears 
anything from Colin Cabot, and she’s never had any problem with traffic everyone has been friendly, slows 
down and waves. Dennis Proulx said he doesn’t notice the traffic and the road is dirt but the town does great. 
Mr. Proulx said Colin does great things and he doesn’t see why there shouldn’t be a bed and breakfast. Mr. 
Yeaton and Mr. Darling had discussion with the board about including the bedrooms in Mr. Cabot’s home as 
part of the bed and breakfast, not just the 7 new rooms. The board agreed the application was for the bed and 
breakfast which only includes the 7 new rooms. Earl Tuson said having a board of directors is a slippery slope 
and concerns him.  Howard Pearl made a motion to approve the application not to exceed 7 new units for a 



bed and breakfast with a large kitchen with indoor dining for 30. Charlie Aznive seconded the motion. 
Howard Pearl amended the motion to include lot 17-3 as well. Charlie Aznive seconded the motion. A roll 
call was taken. Charlie Aznive – yes, Earl Tuson – yes, Dave Powelson – yes, Howard Pearl – yes, George 
Saunderson - yes. Unanimous – APPROVED. 
 
Board Discussion:  
Declaration of Restrictions from Doug Cole – The board looked over the paperwork and the approved 
application. The paperwork states encumbered land would be on lot 48-10. The board discussed the approval 
was for 39-14 to be encumbered and this is clearly stated in the minutes. The board discussed the stipulation 
that was approved and Melissa will draft a letter to Mr. Cole and send to the board to look over.  
 
Adjournment: 
Howard Pearl moved to adjourn the meeting at 9:05 pm; seconded by George Saunderson.  All were in 
favor. 
 
Submitted by, 
 
Melissa Lucier 
Administrative Assistant 
 


